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Introduction 

Clwt Camp lies at a height of 245 m. above Ordnance Datun, on a s light spur 

on the north-facing slope of the Miwl valley, about 3.5 km east of Kerry (SO 

18018952).2 The site is completely overlooked by higher ground to the south 

and south-east, but the local topography is steepest to the north and north­

east, immediately below the camp (fig. 1). The general siting is similar to 

the univallate enclosure at Drefor, 1 km to the east. 

Until recently, the camp lay within and was obscur ed by mature timber 

forming part of the western end of 5ibwll Wood (a lso known as Tref een 

Wood).3 During the course of clearfelling carried out in the win t er of 1986-

87, a new trackway was cut across the site by machine, inadvertently 

damaging the enclosure entrance and parts of the enclosure banks at the 

north-west entrance, and also infi11in9 part of the ditch on the south-east. 

Fortunately, the interior of the camp has sustained little damage. 

As a consequence, the Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust was commissioned 

in late February and early March 1987 to make a record of the oblique 

section which had been cut through the encloure banks just to the north of 

the entrance. The opportunity was also taken to make a complete survey of 

the site, now unobscured by trees, to which the recorded sect ion could be 

related. 4 The bank ends were subsequently consolidated with turf to prevent 

further erosion. The area around the camp had been replanted with larch 

transplants just before the survey was made. 
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General description of the camp 

The camp essentially forms aD-shaped univallate enclosure about 6S m. 

across, with a usable internal area of about 1 ha. (2.14 acres), with an 

outer, counterscarp bank on t h e northern si de. S There is a fall of about 15 

m. from the nort hern to the southern side of the camp, and the profile from 

north to south gives the impression that the internal area has been slightly 

terraced into the hillside, the resulting spoil presumably being used to 

enhance a slight natural spur on which it is sited (fig. 1, C-D). 

Both banks are fairly low and sometimes indistinct, especially on the 

eastern side. A hollow about 2 .5 m. across on the crest of the bank at the 

north-east corner (ommitted from the accompanying plan), may have resulted 

from a tree being uprooted some time in the past. The ditch presently varies 

in width from 3 to 4 m., and in depth from 0.5 to 1 . 6 m. It is both widest 

and deepest on the south-east side, facing the rising ground, an obs er vation 

also made at Orefor (Spurgeon 1972, 330) . On this side, s uch is the rise in 

the ground that the outer edge of the ditch is about I m. higher than the 

inner edge. On the wes tern side there is a discontinuity in the line of the 

ditch where it crosses a slight saddle. While it is possible that this is 

due to later disturbance, it may be that the ditch Was incompletely dug, 

suggesting that the ditch was primarily a quarry for bank material, r ather 

than being essentially defensive in its own right. 

According to Spurgeon (1972, 332), the only entrance was a simple gap 

on the north-west; this is consi stent with earlier sketch plans of the s ite 

(Morris 1889, Hughes 1922), but this had unfortunately been damaged before 

the new survey was made. The Royal Commission (ReAM 1919, no. 284) locates 

the entrance on the eastern side, but there appears to be little evidence 

for this. 

Just inside the enclosure entrance is a sI ight terrace defined by a 

scarp about 0.5 m. high, which appears to represent a house platform about 

14 m. across. There are no other clear indications of buildings within the 

enclosure. 
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The bank sections 

The section which resulted from the machine cut, extended for a distance of 

13.4 m. to the north-east of the entrance (fig. 1, A-B). The recently 

constructed trackway had been cut down into the natural, light olive 

coloured clay and angular shale beneath the inner bank, and to about the 

base of the counterscarp bank. Part of the section was obscured by a tree 

stump and tree roots, which had clearly caused some disturbance to the 

stratification. 

The banks proved to be very slight, and advantage had clearly been 

taken of the natural siting during their construction to minimise the effort 

involved. The inner bank consisted of a layer of fairly firm yellowish brown 

sandy loam up to 0.4 m. thick. The counterscarp bank was of similar 

material, but only about 0.2 m. thick, and contained a greater quantity of 

angular shale fragments towards its base. There was no suggestion of a 

buried ground surface below either bank. The trackway had just clipped the 

upper filling of the ditch below the topsoil just to the north of the 

entrance, revealing about 0.1 m. of yellowish brown sandy silt. No datable 

material was recovered when the sections were cleaned and recorded. 
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Damaged bank ends and partially infilled ditch terminal and recently 
constructed trackway on the northern side of the entrance, viewed from the 
south-west. 

Recent l y constructed trackway and partially infilled enclosure ditch on the 
eastern side of the camp, viewed from the south. 
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Section through the inner bank, viewed from the south-west (scale 2 metres) . 

Section through the outer bank viewed from the south-west (scale 2 metres). 
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